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The Committee on General Affairs met at 1:30 p.m. on Monday,
February 28, 2005, in Room 1510 of the State Capitol,
Lincoln, Nebraska, for the purpose of conducting a public
hearing on LB 107, LB 108, LB 430, LB 668, and LB 702.
Senators present: Ray Janssen, Chairperson; Deb Fischer,
Vice Chairperson; Matt Connealy; Abbie Cornett; Philip
Erdman; Mike Friend; David Landis; and Roger Wehrbein.
Senators absent: Ncne.

SENATOR FISCHER: My name 1is Deb Fischer and I am the
senator from District 43, and I'm the Vice Chair of the
committee and I will open the hearings today. Senator
Janssen is introducing a bill before the Education Committee
and he will be back shortly or possibly not so soon. If I
could, I would 1like to introduce the members of the
committee. Senator Erdman is walking in; nice to have you.

SENATOR ERDMAN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Senator Friend £from Omaha will be
introducing the first bill. To my far left is Senator
Cornett. Next to her is Senator Wehrbein, Senator Connealy,
and then we have the committee clerk, Brittany, thank you;

and our legal counsel, Laurie. If we can I will open the
hearing now on LB 107, and Senator Friend...oh, if you would
wait just a minute, I need to go over a few things. First

of all, if you are going to testify before a bill, please
have your form filed out so you can put it n the little box
up here on the table, and then we'll be able to make sure
that we have all the testimony recorded properly. If you
would also spell your name for the record, that would be
helpful. If you are representing someone, please state who
you are representing. The way we run the hearings, we have
after the introducer is finished, we have the proponents
speak, then the opponents, and then anyone wishing to
testify in a neutral capacity, and we will follow that
format today. We don't have a specific time limit on
testimony but we do ask that you try and keep your testimony
short, and if someone who testifies before you has said what
you would like to say, you don't need to repeat it. You can
just say that you agree with that person and hit the points
briefly. Also I would ask that you turn off any cell phones
that vyou have or any pagers, and also to please not to have
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any conversations while the hearing is gcing on so that we
are able to hear the testimony that is being brought today
before the hearing. And with that I will open the hearing
on LB 107. Senator Friend.

LB 107

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, Senator Fischer, and members of
the General Affairs Committee., For the record, my name 1is
Mike Friend, and that's spelled F-r-i-e-n-d. I represent
the 10th Legislative District in northwest Omaha, and I'm
here to introduce and request for your support the
Legislative Bill 107. I'm introducing the bill at the
request of Project Extra Mile, a statewide organization
committed to prevention of underage drinking. I carried
this bill previously in 2003 session. It was then LB 606, I
believe. And portions of it were amended by the committee
into another bill. Ultimately the bill failed to advance; I
believe it was in General File. LB 107 is a straightforward
bill changing one word in current law, and the bill would
allow the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission for secondary
and subsequent suspensions the discretion to consider a
licensee's ten-year history following the licensee's first
suspension for a violation of selling or dispensing alcohol
to minors. At present, if a licensee has a secondary or
subsequent violation, the statutes allow the commission the
discretion te consider their four-year history from the time
of the initial suspension. A couple years ago the
commission considered a licensee's entire history. Actually
it was more than a couple of years ago; I believe it was
three or Efour. But it would allow the commission to
consider the licensee's entire history. To me it would seem
like good policy to look at a more reasonable ten-year
period so the commission might be able to better address
businesses that come before them with more frequent
violations. If the committee is interested in amending the
biil to reflect the previous position, I guess I would be
glad to entertain those type of ideas. Short of that, I
guess I just wanted to say thank you for the opportunity to
come here and possibly discuss this bill. And if there are
any questions, I would be happy to answer them.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Senator Friend. Does anyone
have a question? Thank you very much. Next we will have
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the proponents for the bill. How many of you are wishing to

testify in favor of the bill? All right, please come
forward.
DIANE RIIBE: Hi. Good afternoon, Senator Janssen is

absent, but senators and members of the committee, my name
is Diane Riibe, and it's R-i-i-b-e, and I serve as the
executive director of Project Extra Mile. As Senator Friend
stated, we are a statewide organization working to prevent
underage drinking and youth access to alcohol. Thank you to
Senator Friend for introducing the bill. As he mentioned,
it was introduced a couple of years ago. We're supportive
of LB 107. We believe that the Liquer Contrel Commission
should have the opportunity to consider the past ten years
of a liguor license establishment's record while reviewing
that record for violations when imposing penalties, In
fact, the ten-year period is reasonable and does not rise to
the level of accountability imposed even on drinking drivers
whose violations can be enhanced over a 12-year period. We
do appreciate, however, that the Liquor Control Commission
is constrained by a court decision that directed their wuse
of the statute at a four-year period of review. We would
respectfully ask this committee to support LB 107 to allow
for a more reasonable approach to reviewing a licensee's
record in light of the large number of license holders in
the state, and that vreally is the issue, We have always
held that businesses have every right to sell a legal
product lawfully and to profit from that sale. In the case
of the sale of alcohol by retail establishments, those
businesses have gone into an agreement with the state of
Nebraska to sell that product, They cannot sell to
intoxicated people, for instance, and they cannot sell to
someone under the age of 21. We have asked retailers, as we
have others within our communitieg, to understand their role
in preventing underage youth drinking, as well as underage
access to alcohol. We ask them to engage in their business
in a way that also provides for public health and
well-being. Retailers, quite frankly, have a higher level
of accountability because they have the potential for harm
if they are not diligent and it is profound and
far-reaching. Quite literally, we lose the lives of our
children and those of our loved cnes, and we have two cases
specifically as I sit here before you, one in Ogallala and
one in Kearney, of a direct sale to a minor that resulted in
a death. The proposed change in the statute is critical
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because with current enforcement capacities it is wvirtually
impossible to conduct checks for compliance at those
licensed establishments with sufficient timeliness to even
come under a four-year look-back period. 1In areas of the
state where retail outlets are far more densely saturated,
the chances of a business being checked more than once or
twice 1in a four-year period becomes a mathematical
improbability. There are anywhere from 1,300 to
1,400 licensees in the two-county Omaha area. Over the past
eight years of conducting collaborative compliance checks in
that area, law enforcement is able to check, on average,
400 businesses each year. At that rate it would take three
and a half years to check even all of those businesses Jjust
one time, If law enforcement is constrained by resources
and unable toc check locations with sufficient regularity,
the statute becomes ineffective and certainly the
commission's guidelines for cancellation become ineffective.
The very laws and policies put in place to address, as 1
refer to, the worst of the worst violators, will be rendered
useless. It becomes, again, a virtual, statistical
improbability. So, few businesses will ever have to concern
themselves with being held to a four-year period for any
review of any violation. They will be lucky to be checked
by law enforcement even one time in that period. As a
result, communities would be missing the important,
consistent, oversight ability so necessary for those
businesses to be held accountable at all, much less
accountable to a high standard. If the statute is allowed
to remain unchanged, Nebraska alcohol control policy will
take a step backwards and communities will be less safe. We
urge you strongly to move on LB 107 and get it out of
committee onto the floor, and give the Liquor Control
Commigsion the ability to address those violators who are
reckless and put that, with that behavior, put our families
and our communities at risk. Thank you very much, senators.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Diane. Does anyone have any
guestions? Senator Wehrbein.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I don't know if you know this, but do you
know what percent of procurement of alcohecl by minors comes
from a retailer versus from another adult?

DIANE RIIBE: There are a number of pieces of literature out
there, Senator, and it is anywhere from 20 to 30 percent is
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estimated from a retail source, and the remainder is from a
social setting. So both of them are important.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: But it's about 20 or 30 percent for a
retailer.

DIANE RIIBE: Um-hum.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions? Thank you very much.
DIANE RIIBE: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Next proponent, please.

SUSIE DUGAN: Senator Fischer and members of the committee,
my name is Susie Dugan and I am with PRIDE-Omaha,
Incorporated, We are an organization dedicated to
preventing the use of alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs by
young people. And we are in full support of LB 107, and for
the same reasons that Diane has just outlined. We have been
attending the Liquor Control Commission's hearings since
1988, and it's very disheartening to see that the powers are
limited by that four-year look-back. We urge you to pass
LB 107 and move it on to committee...out of committee onto
the floor. Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Susie. Any questicns? Thank
you very much. Any other proponents? Seeing none, we'll
move on to the opponents of the bill. How many of those do
we have? If you would like to come, please?

MIKE KELLEY: (Exhibit 1) Senator Fischer and members of
the General Affairs Committee, my name is Mike Kelley,
K-e-1-l-e-y, and I'm a registered lobbyist for Responsible
Beverage Operators of Nebraska. 1I'll have to...I'll get my
sheet turned in here in a second. And I want to show
you...we're obviously opposed to this bill, and I want to
show you...and for those of you who are new, give you a
little bit of the background. As you may or may not Kknow,
under current law the Liquor Commission suspends someone.
Then you have a right to buy out of that suspension.
In lieu of suspension, you pay a fine. So if you've got a
ten-day suspension, you can stay closed for ten days, or you
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can buy out of it. That's the current law. Now, several

years back, the commission decided that they needed a hammer
especially for a big operator because we had Albertson's,
just to use a name, a big operator, you know, a $500 fine?
What did that do to them? And...but a couple-day closure
was required. So eventually we kind of made a compromise
with Senator Landis, and a bill was put through that allowed
for some closures. And that was only supposed to be used in
extreme circumstances when you really thought you had
management or ownership that was not paying attention,. And
so...but what has happened is the commission decided to put
some guidelines in place. And, let me see, I've got them
here if I could have the page hand them ocut. And I want you
to look at these and you'll see... And by way of
background, I'm an attorney; I've been practicing liquor law
for over 30 years. I also own four or five licenses. And
it's ironic; Diane Riibe talks about it's an impossibility
to get checked very often if you are a licensee. Well, wmy
places seem to get checked a lot. I must really be lucky.
Maybe I should go buy a lottery ticket, because I get
hit...my places, we seem to have no problem of law
enforcement getting the places that I'm associated with. So
looking at the guidelines, I want you to see how severe
these are. If you are caught within the first year, if you
have a suspension, you can see how severe it is. If you
have a second offense within one year or two years, you are
talking about a $4,000 fine plus closure. This is supposed
to be something that was never going to be used except
against just very rarely. Now it's wused in every casec.
Every time there is a second offense, it's used. Once in A
while the commission will go against their guidelines, but
it's very rare. I've argued with the commission frequently
about that. We have a disagreement about how these
guidelines ought to be interpreted, but the commission is
doing what they think is right and this is...I just want you
to be aware of how strict it is now. I think to give
retailers a four-year window to go...if you get through
four years, then you are back to a clean, to a level playing
field, to a clean slate, so to speak. I think that's a good
thing. I think that's something we ought to encourage.
The...going back ten years, first of all, you have to
understand the liquor retail industry a little bit. It's
very unusual to see the same management in place for four
years. Managers come and go. You have different people,
different owners come and go. You don't have the same exact
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people. So to go back ten years...something happened
nine years ago should have no reflection on what is
happening currently. And keep in mind, these guidelines

almost...well, I'm sure 98 percent...you can ask Mr. Rupe if
he gets up here from the commission, how many sales to

minors are compliance checks--that means law
enforcement-generated or stings as they are called in our
industry. How many? It's like 98 percent. So most of

these fines that are being levied, hundreds of thousands of
dollars of fines are being levied, are all being levied,
generated through law enforcement--our own checks; not real
sales to minors. And I understand there is a tragedy here
and there. Somebody sells to a minor and there is a
tragedy; you know, that's a different thing; we ought to
deal with that on a case-by-case basis. And, again, Diane
talked about 20 to 30 percent. Senator Wehrbein, 1I...that
get it from retail, I think it's more like 15 percent. It's
a very low amount. People do not normally go down and
get...buy from retailers, so that's not the big problem
anyway. So I guess we're trying to fix something here
that's not broke. The law that's...what you have, I'd like
to be in here with a bill just to repeal all of this, but I
know better so I'm not going to try. But what we have now
is very tough. And I represent licensees. I'm at the
commission every meeting, too. And I represent licensees
and they get fined and they get whacked tremendously hard.
And on a small establishment...now, remember now, we're
treating Albertson's...and under the law we've got to treat
Albertson's the same as some Ma and Pa place. You take a
small place in rural Nebraska and give them a §5,000 fine, I
am telling vyou that's crippling in modern day eccnomy. So
the guidelines that are in place are tremendously tough now.
Four years is plenty long. This Legislature made a decision
several years ago, four years was enough to go back. I
mean, you have, on many felonies you have a seven-year
statute of limitations, for goodness sakes. We're talking
about compliance checks here. So I think a four-year window
is a reasonable approach. I think going back any further
than that is not necessary. Again, if it's not broke, don't
fix it. I would be happy to answer any questions that you
might have.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Mike. Does anyecone have any
questions? I don't see any.
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MIKE KELLEY: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you. The next opponent, please?

KATHY SIEFKEN: Senator Fischer and members of the
committee, my name is Kathy Siefken; Kathy with a K,
S-i-e-f-k-e-n. I'm the executive director of the Nebraska

Grocery Industry Association, and we're here in opposition
to this bill today. First of all, I'm glad that Mike used
the example of Albertson's, because they are not one of my
members. Actually, they are not even in the state of
Nebraska anymore, so. Anyway, one of the reasons we're
opposed to this bill is because we have spent literally
thousands of dollars and hundreds of hours training our
clerks. Our association has a program that we take across
the state. Some years it's ten locations, some years it's
15 locations. It's free of charge. And we train our people
how to deal with minors, how to deal with aggressive people
whenever it comes to age sensitive products. We take pride
in the fact that our numbers have been substantially reduced
and we have made a big difference in the number of sales
that take place to minors. If you all recall, 20 years ago
it didn't seem to be that big a deal. Today it is. And we
have made a conscious change amongst all of our members to
make sure that we are doing the responsible thing. And as a
matter of fact, here in the city of Lincoln we work with the
NU Directions, the University of Nebraska, and put together
a program where we actually go in and do the compliance
checks 1in grocery stores on sales of liquor. And we have
found the last two years that we are at 92 percent
compliance. That's better than anyone ever thought we would
be. When we're at 8 percent noncompliance, 8 percent is
still too much but the point is we're trying; we are taking
this very seriously. The fines and the penalties that are
in place right now got our attention. We had one small
retailer that paid a fine of over $6,000 because he made the
mistake of selling to a minor. He understood that he was
responsible, and they take the responsibilities very
seriously. He paid the fine and he hasn't sold to a minor
since then. He has had additional training in the store
that made that sale. They were having trouble with turnover
and it was just a bad si.uation. But the point is, they've
taken the steps to correct that. It just seems that the
better we get at stopping those sales, and the more
productive we are in training our clerks and the more
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serious we get about this, the harder the antiliquor people
want to hit us. And I don't understand that because I think
we're doing a pretty good job, It doesn't mean that we're
done working on this, but what it does mean is we're really
trying, so I'm puzzled as to why we don't get credit for
doing the good job that we have done. And so with that, if
you have any questions 1 would be happy to try to answer
them.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Kathy. Any questions? Senator
Wehrbein.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: This is a new area for me. Do you have
any retailers that are perfect, so to speak, who have never
had violations?

KATHY SIEFKEN: Yes, I do. I do.
SENATOR WEHRBEIN: 1Is it quite a few, or...?

KATHY SIEFKEN: Well, I can't...the reason I can tell you
yes I do 1is because 1 have one of my grocers here today
testifying over in another committee, and I wanted...I
called him up to ask him, because it was on the age
verification, and we were looking for someone that had
failed one of the tests, and he hadn't failed, so I know
I've got at least one of them, But the point is, nobedy is
perfect. And when you get the turnover that we get in
grocery stores, sometimes it is difficult because you are
only as good as your worst employee on their worst day. But
even our worst employees on their worst day, the percentages
are there. I mean, we are doing a good job of stopping
those sales.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you. Senator Erdman has a question.

SENATOR ERDMAN: Unrelated to the bill. You said there are

no Albertson's in Nebraska? There 1is actually one in
Scottsbluff. Is that...just so you are clear on your
testimony.

KATHY SIEFKEN: Albertson's pulled out of the Nebraska
market.

SENATOR ERDMAN: So the one that's actually operating in
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Scottsbluff is operating...?

KATHY SIEFKEN: Will be closed, if it isn't already...if
it's still open, my understanding was that they have pulled
completely out of our market, so.

SENATOR ERDMAN: Okay. dJust thought I would add that to the
record in case...

KATHY SIEFKEN: But I'll check on that.

SENATOR ERDMAN: ...other grocers would read your testimony
to make sure you are doing your job.

KATHY SIEFKEN: Okay. 1I'll check on that.

SENATOR ERDMAN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions? Thank you, Kathy.
KATHY SIEFKEN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Next opponent, please.

JIM MOYLAN: Madam Chairman and members of the committee,
I'm Jim Moylan appearing on behalf of the Nebraska Licensed
Beverage Association, and that's M-o-y-l-a-n, appearing
today 1in opposition to this legislative bill. You've heard
a lot of the testimony. One thing I think is the number of
minors that get beverages from retailers is pretty well laid
out, and I think it's lower than 20 or 30 percent. There
ought to be prcbably more time spent on educating minors
through high schools, and the like, you know, than zeroing
in on the bars all the time. It seems like everything comes
along, it's always the bar's fault, you know, and we're the
ones that take the rap and the beating and get the bad
headlines, you know. But the four vyears has been in
existence for years. I remember when it was enacted years
ago. I can remember when it was enacted when they could pay
a fine. It used to be you couldn't pay a fine. Now, I said
before, the retailers in the state do not 1like to have
mincrs in their establishments. They treasure their
license. They know it's a privilege. And they just don't
want to take a chance on losing their license and their
business totally, so they are very careful about how they
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operate. Senator Wehrbein, I think there are a few in the

state which probably have not had any violations for years
and years and years, you know. Then it will depend upon the
community that you live in, what the enforcement 1is like.
And all of sudden, you know, you'll see enforcement that
really gets down on them and all of sudden in one town you
might have a little establishment getting three and four
because of the heightened enforcement, compared to another
town down the road where it is maybe a little bit more lax,
you know. But they still will run into violations. I had
the case about four or five years ago, and as you know, the
commission has a system that allows you to send in a written
waiver when they cite you. 1 had an establishment cited for
an open container after hours. Now, if an open container is
a mortal sin, I didn't learn my catechism very well vyears

ago. And it so happened they had sent in their waiver, and
they hadn't had one in about three, four, five years, a
violation. They sent in their waiver, signed it, entered a

plea of guilty, and then, as you know, the commission meets,
has a hearing, sets a penalty, and advises them in the mail
that vyour license has been suspended for so many days and
you've got so long to pay a fine if you would like. Well,
it so happened that they had had four open containers in
16 years so they cancelled their license. Well, we had to
go to district court in order to get an injunction to keep
them open and to be able to keep the license. And in that
case, the judge said that there is indications that the four
years was meant to mean, you know, that you can only go back
four years when you are deciding what type of a penalty to
assess an establishment at a time of a hearing on a
subsequent violation. And so we just believe, and if you
look through the laws, you will see that the main statute of
limitations in the state is four years. You will find some
that are...one or two that are five; you will find some the

statute 1is just one; you will find some, like
med malpractice is two; but the ordinary statute of
limitations is four for just about anything. And we think

that's a good statute of limitations on behalf of the
retailers, and we would ask that you not change this
procedure and we are allowed to continue in business like we
have since 1935 without being threatened of being closed
down. If there are any questions I would be happy to try to
answer them.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Jim. Any questions? Senator
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Wehrbein.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I know this is a dumb question for those
in the business, but I honestly don't know the answer,
although I think I've heard it. If I have a perfect false
ID and I come in and use it and get away with 1it, 1is the
retailer responsible for a perfect false ID?

JIM MOYLAN: No, not 1if they follow those provisions in
there. If the person looks to be reasonably old enough and
presents an ID that 1looks wvalid, then I think they are
immune from it. There is a section on that, and...

SENATCR CORNETT: Don't they also have to sign the book
attesting and swearing...

JIM MOYLAN: Yeah, and then you have to sign the register if
you have a registry, you know. And you have them sign that
they are 21 and put the information in the book that
they...you know, their identification signed for...

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: So they are under oath, and they
are...nct an oath, but...

JIM MOYLAN: As long as they sign the book; vyeah. But I
don't think you find a court, a perfectly good false ID that
matched, you know. There isn't any way to tell whether they
are minors or not. You know, if they go to another state
and get a driver's license, they are 18 years old, and they
get one that shows them 21 years old or some place in the
mail and it looks just perfect to a driver's license and
matches the state driver's license, I think they have a
defense to that. .

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: But there is no rigid rule, apparently.

JIM MOYLAN: No, I don't think there is. I would have to do
a little bit of research on that.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: Well, I didn't know whether to ask you or
not. I didn't know who was testifying so I picked on you.

JIM MOYLAN: Yeah, I would have to lcok at that, but I think
that's still a defense. If they signed the book, then you
are definitely not responsible, you know, so, but I still
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think you would have a gocd defense.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I'll ask somebedy else. I didn't know
who was coming up, so.

JIM MOYLAN: Yeah, I'll have to look at that again, so,
thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions? Thank you, Jim. Any

other opponents to the bill? For the record, I would like
to read in that Jim Otto of the Nebraska Retail Federation
has submitted a letter in opposition to LB 107. (Exhibit 2)
Anyone wishing to testify in a neutral capacity?

HOBERT RUPE: Good afternoon, senators. My name is Hobert
Rupe, R-u-p-e. I'm the executive director cf the Nebraska
Liquor Control Commission, and from the tone of some of the
questions I felt I had...it would best of me to avail myself
for any questions on that. The commission has taken a
position of being neutral on this bill. The facts that sort
of spawned our...you have a copy of our penalty guidelines
where we only 1look back four years, whereas the case that
Mr. Moylan spoke of, that was a case where the it was the
Marylebone Tavern in Omaha. I remember because at that time
I was the prosecuting attorney for the commission, and
handled the case at the district court level, where it was
their fourth offense of an open container within ten years.
They had more previously but back then they were only
looking back ten years by policy. There was no statutory
provision for ten years. It sort of it had grown out of what
was commonly called the Nancy McGinley rule, who was an
older...who had been on the commission long before I was
ever involved. And they sort of adopted that they only
looked back ten vyears for the history. Statutorily, they
could look back at the entire history of the licensee, but
sort of to keep themselves consistent, they adopted the
penalty guidelines where they were looking back only ten
years and they were basically in the same format that you
have before you. The different...the changes were that
there was the legislation which came into effect which
allowed for mandatory closure on subsequent sales to minors.
And in that thing, then there was the four-year provision
when it went to the district court, Judge Cheuvront said,
you know, it doesn't tell you guys directly, but the way I
am reading it 1is every indication is the Legislature has
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given you the idea that you should lock back four years. So
as a result of that directive from the court, we changed our
penalty guidelines to only look back four years. One thing
important to note is that they are penalty guidelines, and
for the most part I would probably say 99.5 percent, the
commission follows them pretty strictly. We found that by
being consistent and fair, no matter who is coming in front
of us, whether it is Albertson's or a small mom and pop bar,
if they are...if it's the same violation of the act and
we're consistent, that it is the fairest wuse of the
commission's responsibilities. 8o beyond that, I guess 1
could answer any questions. I guess, Senator Wehrbein, it

is funny that you ask if there is any perfect licensees. A
lot of friends of mine have come up to me over the last year
gince I came onto this position. They go, oh, well, you

probably know about my friend's bar here, in which case 1
have to tell them, the last thing you want me to know is
where your friend's bar is, you know, because generally if 1
see or hear your bar has been in front of us for something
bad. But we are honored to have Chairman Bob Logsdon as
chairman of our committee, and he ran a liquor establishment
for 40 years with no ligquor violations. So there are dquite
a few out there which do everything above board and don't
have the problems with it. So, I guess I just have to throw
that in for...as an example of a good operator.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Mr. Rupe. Questions? Senator
Wehrbein.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I would like to pursue on this. Since
you said you were prosecuting, how do you look at a fake ID?

HOBERT RUPE: Fake IDs, there is an automatic provision if
they, vyou know, defense, that if it's a fake ID that looks
reasonable to the age and they go through what is generally
called the minor's book. If they protect themselves that
way, in other words, if it's close and they go ahead and
have them sign the minor's book, it's an absolute defense.
Beyond that, the commission will look at cases on a
case-by-case basis. They are not entitled to the automatic
defense, but the commission tries to use reasonableness when
they are looking at it. One case 1 <can recall recently
where the commission found somebody not guilty was a
young...was a woman who was 20, had borrowed her older
sister's ID who was 18 months older, and if you look at them
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next to each other they were nearly identical. And she was
using her o¢lder sister's who was 21 at the time to get in
there, and the commission felt that given that fact, it was
reasonable for the bar owner to rely wupon that
representation. They would have been better if they would
have gone ahead and signed the minor's book. In that case,
they didn't so they didn't have the automatic defense.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions? Senator Connealy.

SENATOR CONNEALY: Thank you. So you do have some
viclations outside of the enforcement actions. You do have
some minor convictions and apprehensions, if not

convictions, through regular channels?
HOBERT RUPE: Yes, we do.

SENATOR CONNEALY: But it is the majority of the violations
that you get for liquor establishments selling to minors is
through enforcement.

HOBERT RUPE: They are generally under compliance checks.
And, honestly, I'll sort of put my hat back in here as a
former prosecutor. For one main reason, they are really
easy to prosecute and they are really to pass 1if you know
what vyou are doing. The Nebraska State Patrol has set up
guidelines which govern law enforcement utilizing
cooperating minors in these compliance checks. They have to
look and be dressed age appropriately. The Patrol takes
photographs of them the day that they are working, so how
they are 1looking. The only ID that they have on them is
their own legitimate ID If asked for an ID, that's the 1ID
they give them, and they are instructed that they are not to
tell any falsehoods or lies. As soon as he says, are you a
minor or are you under 21, they are supposed to answer, yes,

I am. Or the other way is, here's my ID. And so what's
remarkable 1is we're still seeing perhaps a 10 percent
failure rate. I think Ms. Riibe c¢ould tell you better

because of the exact percentage. But that's even now with
the new vertical IDs, you are still seeing people taking the
new vertical IDs and still selling to minors. And those are
the ones that say "under 21" wuntil a certain date, and
instead of being horizontal like ours, they are vertical and
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there are still approximately about an 8 to 10 percent
failure rate even with those IDs.

SENATOR CONNEALY: But that's the vast majority of who you
get?

HOBERT RUPE: That's the problem. I would have to say that
that's the vast majority of prosecutions. The problems that
we have in a lot of ways with what I think Mr. Kelley
called them real minor checks is an example of proof. If
somebody...if they go in there and they purchase a l2-pack
of beer, unless they keep the receipt with them it 1is sort
of hard to backtrack them if they are then later on stopped
by law enforcement and they say, where did you get the beer

at? Generally, they are not...they are going to lie.
They're not going to tell you whether they are older brother
got them for them; it's some guy I met on the corner. And

if it was a vretail establishment, they are generally not
going to tell you which one did it because they probably
have been buying there for awhile and they don't want to get
them in trouble. So it's...you know, 1it's a serious
problem, but one of the problems we see before the
commission is a matter of proof of proving that they
actually bought it from that retail establishment.
Sometimes we have easy ones. We have minors walking out of
the quick shops as the police officers are going in to get a
cup of coffee. That's a pretty easy one there. Sometimes
with the antitheft cameras end up being a way to prove it by
you can see the minor going in and purchasing them and you
can sometimes see them not check the ID, and so then if they
are caught leaving the parking lot or something, you can
prove up that they were...had purchased from that
establishment.

SENATOR FISCHER: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Rupe.
HOBERT RUPE: Thank you very much.

SENATOR FISCHER: Anyone else wishing to testify in a
neutral capacity? Senator Friend, you may close.

SENATCR FRIEND: Just briefly. Thank you, Senator Fischer.
We've heard plenty of bills in this committee this vyear
already that were more or less geared toward, in my opinion,
trying to empower the Liguor Control Commission. I believe
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one of them was LB 530. Frankly, based on that, I find it a
little curious the Liquor Control Commission would come in
in a neutral capacity on this bill because I look at this
type of thing an empowerment issue for the Liquor Control
Commission; a concrete empowerment issue; something that you
can verify, something that you can look at and say, yeah, we
are empowering them. I don't carry bills to punish
organizations and entities. If that's the way, I guess a
lot of the industry feel, then they mistake my goals and
objectives as a legislator. This is...tc me, empowerment.
If I told Senator Erdman he has got 15 minutes to go get me
lunch or I'm going to rock his world, (laughter), he's
got...there are some issues there. Fifteen minutes isn't
much time. If I tell him you've got 45 minutes to go get me
lunch or I'm going to rock your world, I've got a feeling I
might get a pretty good lunch out of the whole deal...

SENATOR ERDMAN: You're not that tough.

SENATOR FRIEND: ...because Senator Erdman is inherently
afraid of me. (Laughter) The bottom line is, I guess what
I'm getting at 1is I think that this is clear-cut
empowerment. If the Ligquor Control Commission 1is an
incompetent organization, ten years isn't going to do them
any good. If they are half-way competent, it's going to
give them a little bit of empowerment, I guess that's all I
would have to say. I would answer questions if there are
any. Senator Erdman looks like he has one.

SENATOR FISCHER: Any guestions?

SENATOR ERDMAN: She asked if you feel lucky, but I figure
I'11l just wait.

SENATOR FRIEND: I don't feel lucky at all. No. Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions. Thank you, Senator
Friend.

SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you.
SENATOR FISCHER: We will close the hearing on LB 107. The

next bill on the committee's agenda is LB 108, and Senator
Friend you may open on that bill.
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LB 108
SENATOR FRIEND: Thank you, again, Senator Fischer. And,
again, my name is Mike Friend, F-r-i-e-n-d. I represent the
10th Legislative District in northwest Omaha. I'm here to

introduce and request for your support the Legislative
Bill 108. I'm introducing the bill at the request also of
Project Extra Mile, the statewide organization committed to
preventing underage drinking. I carried this bill also last
year...or, excuse me, 1in the 2003 session, It was
Legislative Bill 604 at that time. LB 108 would eliminate
the requirement that a prosecutor must prove venue of a
violation for a minor in possession of alcohol. Remaining
consistent with other parts of the statutes, the sole
exception provided would be to allow a minor in possession

of alcohol at his or her permanent place of residence. I
guess as concerned citizens of our state, and officials in
the law enforcement community will testify, underage

drinkers are well aware of the minor-in-possession laws and
how to aveoid, I would say, getting caught; being 1in
possession, 1if you will, of the alcohol. And based on
feedback provided at the 2003 Judiciary Committee hearing on
the previous legislation, along with recent input from the
General Affairs Committee counsel, we respectfully offer an
amendment. I've got it right here and I'll distribute it to
the committee that will clarify some concerns that both of
the entities have regarding the bill. (Exhibit 3) The
amendment states that the minor must exhibit evidence of
consumption of alcohol and that the evidence is displayed
through voluntary testing or observation. Adoption of this
b1ll, along with the amendment provided, will close a
loophole presently, we believe, in our statutes. I would
just say thank you for the opportunity to come and address
this issue with you today and I'd be happy to answer any
guestions.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Senator Friend. Any questions?
Thank you very much. Next, we will have the proponents for
the bill, please.

MARTY CONBOY: Good afternoon, Senator Fischer, members of
the General Affairs Committee. My name is Marty Conboy,
C-o-n-b-o-y. I'm here from the city of Omaha, also



Transcript Prepared by the Clerk of the Legislature
Transcriber's Office

Committee on General Affairs LB 108
February 28, 2005
Page 19

representing the Nebraska County Attorneys Association, and
as a member of Project Extra Mile, urging your adoption of
LB 108. What Senator Friend said is correct. I speak at
schools throughout the state and have dealt with minor
offenders for 25 years. And I can tell you that they are
keenly aware of how this law and other laws affecting
drinking work, and will tell you that they are aware that
there 1is a huge loophole in our enforcement in this state.
We tell kids that it's illegal to consume alcohol, and yet
they know full well that if they are not caught consuming or
possessing it, that they can't be prosecuted. And the
reality is, when kids are found, they are wusually in a
vehicle, at a party sitting around a keg, and unless the law
enforcement officers can actually see them drink it or
possess it, and hold it, have contrel over it as the statute
says, even if they are falling down drunk, there is not much

the officers can do about it. And the kids are aware of
that, and so right away they'll say I drank at home or I
drank in Iowa. And you can't prosecute. The judges can't
convict. And it's dangerous in the sense that...I think
there are two problems. One 1is, kids are treated
differently, and as a prosecutor that always bothers me when
the same conduct results in different results. The same
kids at parties, some will be arrested and some won't. It

just kind of depends. The red-headed, freckled kid who the
officer could say I saw that kid when we walked in the door;
he had a beer, But the other kids, they can't remember.
And that 1is an actual scenario, that it's...the kid's
parents call and say, hey, he was with his buddies; two of
them got tickets and three of the didn't; how did that
happen? Well, it's because the way our law 1is worded and
the kids are smart enough to know that. And what this would
do 1is it would at least the officers the opportunity, with
the cooperation of these kids, to determine whether or not
these kids had been drinking. If they are sitting in front
of a keg, there are glasses everywhere, and they show signs
of having consumed aleohol, that ought to be something that
the officers and the court could take into consideration.
It doesn't mean they are automatically guilty. There is
still a trial; there is still the burden of proof on the
state to prove that they have this alcohol in their system,
either through measurement or some observation which the
young people would contribute to. I would point out the
reason we don't want minors consuming alcohol in our state
isn't because we're jealous or we're trying to keep it from



Transcript Prepared by the Clerk of the Legislature
Transcriber's Office

Committee on General Affairs LB 108

February 28, 2005

Page 20

it for some reason other than their own safety. We

recognize that it has been pretty obvious for many, many
years that when young people drink, their judgment is
impaired, and some people would say it starts out impaired
anyway. But at least it makes them more dangerous. The
things that kids suffer from, accidents, traffic collisions,
suicides, crime victimization, c¢rime commission, all are
increased dramatically when they consume alcochol. And it
doesn't matter where they drink. Whether they drink at
home, whether they drink at somebody's house or party
doesn't really matter. The fact is, if they are out there
in the community at a place other than their home, they face
the same dangers whether they drink at home or in Iowa or
anywhere else lawfully. This came up at the Judiciary
Committee the other day. A discussion of another issue
involving underage drinking came up where it was asked about
kids who would drink somewhere and how unfair it is that
some can drink at religious ceremonies or at home, and
others can't. This bill would level that playing field, as
well. It would say that if you do drink at home or anywhere
else, and you are out driving around or out roaming around
and you are caught in public, and have consumed alcohol in
the places enumerated in the statute, that you face the
possibility of arrest. And this will be a deterrent for
young people. They do know how these rules work. They do
understand the difference in the law and will govern their
conduct accordingly. It is directly related to safety of
these kids and to justice in the sense that it would be
fairly distributed. This bill was introduced in a format a
few vyears ago where it talked about presumption. I can
understand that the problem with presumption. The burden
should be on the state and that presumptive language has
been removed from this particular statute. There has been
discussions in the past before this committee of getting
away from that idea that kids can drink legally at home, and
that is a fairly old and, I think, important concept in our
law. I've got a kid in the military. You know, you get a
kid who is 20 years old and comes back from military service
somewhere and wants to have a drink watching the football
game, we're not talking about that situation. But if that
same kid later on that night is out driving around, then a
parent who has and does allow a kid consumption of alcohol
in the house should also tell that child you don't go out
and roam arcund the community having consumed alcchol. And
I think it's a matter of public policy. This law would at
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least allow law enforcement to take action in those kinds of
cases. We do about, oh, 2,000 MIP cases a year, and it is
very difficult to deal with the inconsistencies in result,
and 1in those cases in the courtroom where the judges are
frustrated because the facts seem clear. But we need to
have proof beyond a reasonable doubt. This, I think, will
make it clearer to everyone and hopefully will govern the
behavior of these people who we're trying to protect. 1I'd
be happy to answer any questions.

SENATCR FISCHER: Thank you, Mr. Conboy. Any gquestions?
Senator Connealy.

SENATOR CONNEALY: Thank you. Is this...have you seen the
amendment that...

MARTY CONBOY: I am aware...I had heard that it was coming
to talk to Senator Friend.

SENATOR CONNEALY: "Minor exhibits through voluntary testing
or observation, evidence of consumption of alcohol." Is
that tight enough? I mean, we're still...I'm still worried
that we're not tight enough with that we're talking about so
that we...so they don't have ‘"gotchas" and people going
through this. Are we talking about =zero tolerance and
evidence of consumption of alcohecl for your 20-year-old
that...? I just want to make sure that we're doing it
right; that we make sure we don't...in trying to improve
this because I think there are loopholes that one kid gets
it and another doesn't. I've even seen where parents will
hold their kids accountable and other kids that aren't get
out of the loophole because there wasn't any observation.
So I want to tighten it up but I want to do it in a way that
works. It seems to me that this is pretty ambiguous.

MARTY CONBOY: Well, the idea of voluntary observation or
testing, in this particular case I guess it's a matter of
public policy whether you want to compel kids to have to
submit to a test. Normally, the observations are pretty
apparent. I mean, you...I think everybody has experienced
where you see somebody who has got obvious signs that
they've been drinking. And if the officer can... And they
are trained to do it. If they can relate that to the court
to the extent that the judge would £find that that's
evidence, then the state would win. So it still leaves the
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possibility or at least the burden that the state has to
prove it. But I think it's enough that it would give us the
opportunity, and that's what we're looking for again. This
isn't...the problem with that presumptive language some
argued that, well, you can't just automatically find
somebody guilty; there has to be a burden of proof. And I
think that's fair. This language will give us the
ammunition we need to get the case into court and at least
have our day in court fairly so all the kids will be treated
the same. I don't think the amendment will water it down.

SENATOR FISCHER: Any other questions? Senator Wehrbein.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I've got to go here. Just so I
understand, you're at a party with a lots, and 1let's Jjust
say you're even college, let's don't even go to high school,
and half are and half aren't, which is not uncommon at all,
drinking. Now, will you charge the half that haven't drunk?
If..and then the next step is can they take a test to prove
they haven't?

MARTY CONBOY: It would require, first of all, that the
officers would have to find evidence that they have either
consumed or show signs of it. The way that the enforcement
is done, first of all they have to identify how old they are
to make sure that they are under 21. Those who aren't, are
typically asked, have you been drinking? The ones that will
admit it or have been caught red-handed, literally, will be
identified. And the other kids then basically have the
opportunity to take a test, and that's training that we've
had with law enforcement throughout the state and we've done
it for years, that obviously we don't want to waste time or
the time of people whe are innocent. And if they can
demonstrate it, it's in everybody's best interest, including
law enforcement, to say step up here, let's take a look at
you, blow in the machine if we have one, and you are gocing
to go home; you have...you've done the right thing here.
And we've never had a problem with that. What this would do
is then those kids who do show that they have been drinking
and show some signs, the watery eyes and the slurred speech,
and so forth, then the officers, assuming they are under
age, would ticket them and have to document the facts for a
judge to make a decision on.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: In the past, the reason I ask, I've been
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told that vyou are guilty by association in many cases, but
that isn't necessarily...

MARTY CONBOY: No. Law enforcement officers, first of all,
are trained to identify somebody who 1is innocent. And,
again, we encourage these kids not to drink. It is, as you
pointed out, pretty common. And the...of course, the judge

is the final arbiter of that. But the officers have to
dictate in the report what they saw and what they relied on;
whether it's a failed test or those observations. And if

they are not there, as I say, it...just as a practical
matter, the officers appreciate it when they can just send
these kids home because they've got so many to deal with.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: And maybe this isn't the time, but 1
guess I'm going to ask it anyway. Is it...would it be wise
for parents to tell their kids to ask for a test if they get
caught in those situations?

MARTY CONBOY: Absolutely.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: I wasn't aware of that but that would be
a wise thing, wise consult for a parent.

MARTY CONBOY: Absolutely. And I think it also encourages
the kids that that is the right thing to do, and if you are
not doing anything wrong then vyou are not going to be
punished. And, you know, that's I think a sign of fairness
when...I guess I read once in law school that our philosophy
of law is that we would rather see 100 guilty people go free
than convict one innocent person. And convicting somebody
who 1is innocent is obviously a horrible breakdown of the
justice system, so we all work hard to make sure that
doesn't happen, and that's why we train that way.

SENATOR WEHRBEIN: Thanks.

SENATOR CONNEALY: One more.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questions? Senator Connealy.
SENATOR CONNEALY: Going back to the testing, when...with a
minor we had zero tolerance, so does...if the test shows any

percentage of alcohol, then that would be a level, or
you're...at some...do you see this...is that the way you
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would prosecute it, or...?

MARTY CONBOY: Yes. The zero tclerance would be at least
enough to get you into the courtroom. Now, if the kids came
in, I suppose, there are, I suppose, if it's Jjust an
extremely infinitesimal amount of alcoheol, they could show
that they had taken some medication that has alcohol in it,
a cough syrup, for instance. We've done testing, and I know
there are studies about that. There are...normal doses of
any medication will not have enough effect on your body to
have a measurable effect. It is just not enocugh alcohol,
But even at that, they would certainly have the opportunity
to raise that defense. So in answer to your question, yes,
it would zero tolerance.

SENATOR FISCHER: Senator Cornett.

SENATOR TORNETT: It was my experience that when we did this
on the department, that we would administer an AlcoSensor
test which is not admissible in court for a DUI. Are you
referring to say, requiring them to submit to a test, a DUI
or an Intoxilyzer?

MARTY CONBOY: No, just the AlcoSensor, a preliminary test
that you are referring to. And, again, that is primarily
used as a screening device to...

SENATOR CORNETT: So you wouldn't even take necessarily into
account their reading, just the fact that they tested for
alcohol and then showed other signs of intoxication?

MARTY CONBOY: Correct. It would really just be a pass/fail
kind of a thing where, again, as Senator Wehrbein pointed
out, you would want to know if somebody tests zero, then
they are done.

SENATOR FISCHER: Other questicns? Thank you very much.
MARTY CONBOY: Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR FISCHER: Next proponent, please.

DIANE RIIBE: Good afternoon, again, senators. My name is

Diane Riibe, R-i-i-b-e, and we're here in support of LB 108.
And I won't go over the arguments. Marty did a really good
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job of presenting it. But what I will share with is

Nebraska has, as you may well know, a problem with underage
drinking. About 78 percent of our young people indicate by
the time they leave high school that they have consumed in
some fashion. Qur yocung people particularly have a high
rate nationally of drinking and driving, riding with a
drinking driver, and binge drinking. So those are issues
that are always of concern. This is an attempt to simply
close a gap or a loophole in the law. I think everyone
would agree that we want to make certain that the law, the
21 law, which is really seen as the most effective public
policy for savings the 1lives of kids, estimated by the
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration to have saved
as many as 22,000 lives since the mid-80s when it was
initially enacted at a federal level. And so the attempt is
really just to make that 21 law effective, and there are
some real problems with what is out there right now, and
it's important that it be addressed. I don't know that
anyone would say we or anyone has a silver bullet, but there
is a real need to say what can we do to make it better
because there is a lot of gaps right now. And I don't know
that anyone, particularly in a policy situation, would want
to facilitate the consumption of alcochol by young people,
and that's frankly what the law almost encourages at this
peint. So we would ask for your support and be happy to
answer gquestions.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you, Diane. Any questions? Seeing
nene, thank you very much.

DIANE RIIBE: Thank you.
SENATOR FISCHER: Any other proponents, please?

SUSIE DUGAN: Senator Fischer and members of the General
Affairs Committee, my name again is Susie Dugan, D-u-g-a-un.
I am here representing PRIDE-Omaha, Incorperated, an
organization dedicated to the preventing the use of alcohol,
tobacco, and other drugs by young people. And I won't
repeat any of the testimony either. I just want to remind
you that alcochol 1is still the number one cause of
preventable death and injury among our young people here in
Nebraska. I can't believe that anybody in this room doesn't
know somebody that's been severely affected by alcohol
consumption by young people. And the solution includes a
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lot of different addresses to all of the different ways that
this is caused, whether it's the person who is selling
alcohol to a minor, whether it's the parent who thinks it's
okay to allow parties in their home. We have to loock at all
of the reasons that we have this huge problem and we have to
address it. This is one of those that could help by holding
young people more accountable, closing that loophole in the
law, ad I urge you to support LB 108.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you.
SUSIE DUGAN: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Any questions? Thank you. Other
proponents, please?

JIM MOYLAN: Madame Chairman, members of the committee, I'm
Jim Moylan, appearing again on behalf of the Nebraska
Licensed Beverage Association; that's M-o-y-l-a-n. We're
here supporting this bill. 1It's been in a number of times
in the past and we've always supported it. I think, as I
said before, the retailers do not like to have minors in
their establishment and they don't think minors should
drink. This would be a good step in preventing that. There
are a couple more bills floating around here and I think
they are being held Thursday, which I think would have a big
impact on minors, and I hope everybody here today supporting

this would support those bills. And one of them is to
suspend the driver's license of a minor for any liquor
violation, driving or not. Now, they treasure their

driver's licenses. And the other one is to allow a retailer
to detain a minor until law enforcement arrives and also to
confiscate their 1ID if they should have a minor in their
establishment. They will be held later. But they are all a
part of a program I think you know to get to the minors
drinking problem. I suggest that you advance this to the
floor and maybe pass it this year. Any questions, I would
be happy to try to answer it.

SENATOR FISCHER: Okay. Thank you, Jim. Any questions?
Thank you very much. Any other proponents? I do have a
letter here from MADD, Mothers Against Drunk Driving, from
Ms. Reynolds, the state executive director in support of
LB 108 that will be entered into the record. (Exhibit 4)
Are there any opponents to the bill? I see none. Any



Transcript Prepared by the Clerk of the Legislature
Transcriber's Office

Committee on General Affairs LB 108
February 28, 2005
Page 27

neutral testimony?

JEFF HIX: I actually came originally planning for LB 430,
but this has caught my attention so please forgive me if I
am not quite as organized as our other people here. My name
is Jeff Hix, that is J-e-f-f, last name is Hix, H-i-x, and
I'm a private citizen. I don't represent any organizaticn
or any...just my thoughts. One of the things, and I
emphasize that purely because what I'm going to say may give
you a different impression on LB 108. What I do a lot right
now is I take care of my parents, so in order to make any
income at all and do that, I do odd jobs. What I do
sometimes is called quality control in the retail industry.
Now, obviously my grayer hair says I can't go do spot checks
for the subject we're at hand today, but I do encourage
young people to take those assignments when they are
available. The assignments I'm talking about though are not
done by law enforcement, therefore the kids don't have the
same protections as the law enforcement arrangements. Some
retailers do take this very seriously as a subject. And
therefore they contract with third-party companies,
therefore nobody in management at the local store knows what
is going on, and the third-party companies in turn contract
for these spot checks and recruit young peocple to do this
with parental supervision. There are some checks in the way
that this is done from the professional end of it. What I
don't see in the bill and I'm not aware of, and I'm saying
not aware of but I'm not going to tell you it doesn't exist,
is some type of provision that would, with proper paperwork,
i.e. the e-mail contract from the third-party company in the
minor's possession for evidence for the cfficer, and similar
safeguards that nothing in the car in terms of the liquor
can be opened. If it is opened, that's a violation; that
should be prosecuted, on there; and the minor if there
should have a hit, which is simply a purchase in which they
don't want, the merchant is trying to make sure their
employees are in compliance, but if there 1is a purchase
where the employee failed, that is a reported in a reporting
process that does exist that is in the quality control arena
rather than the prosecutor and law enforcement being

involved. In that scenario, the minor woculd be in
possession of the substance to take it home to photograph
and prcvide evidence. I would like to see some type of

provision that protects the subcontractor minor provided
with limitations that they comply with the liquor
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transportation. The liquor 1is not opened and that they
just...if it 1s consumed, it's consumed in the home and
compliance with the existing proposed laws. But I would

like to see something protect these people who are trying to
help the merchants check on their employees to do the same

thing as the law enforcement spot checks. And that's
basically what I am trying to suggest to the committee as an
additional idea. It's not in the bill currently but it is

an idea that I would like to put in front of you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Okay, thank you, Mr. Hix. Any questions?
I see none.

JEFF HIX: Thank you.

SENATOR FISCHER: Thank you very much. Any other neutral
testimony? Senator Friend, would you like to close, please?
Waives closing. With that we will close the hearing on
LB 108. Our Chairman is back and so I will turn the rest
of the hearing over to Senator Janssen.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Thank you, Senator Fischer. LB 430 I
believe is the next bill. Senator Cornett. May I see the
hands of...before Senator Cornett opens, the hands of those
proponents of this bill? One. Cpponents? Okay. Two
apiece. Okay. Senator Cornett, tell us all about LB 430.

LB 430
SENATOR CORNETT: (Exhibit 9) Good afternoon, Chairman
Janseen. My name is Senator Cornett; it's A-b-b-i-e
C-o-r-n-e-t-t. I represent the 45th Legislative District
and I'm here this afternoon to introduce LB 430. The

premise behind LB 430 is a simple one: to extend the time
when bars can stay open in Nebraska to 3 a.m., and to also
allow keno games to be played until 3 a.m. I am offering an
amendment to the committee that would substantially rewrite
LB 430 so as to allow certain licenses, Class CC licensees
to remain open till 3 a.m. The licenses could only be
issued after an affirmative vote of the municipality where
the license would be located. The cost of the license would
be $2,500 and is substantially higher than the current
Class C license. The reason for the large price tag of the
license is twofold. First, so only those who are willing to
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make significant investment into the security of the
facility are going to apply for licenses, and second, so
these licenses are rare and scarce. Not every liquor store
or licensee 1is going to go out and apply for one of these
licenses. The reason for introducing this bill is Nebraska
is a state with one of the 50 most populated cities in the
country to have a closing time that is earlier than 1 a.m.
If we are going to market Omaha and its surrounding areas
for travel and tourism and conventions, then we are going to
need to give attendees a reason not only to come to Omiha
but also a reason to remain on the Nebraska side of the
river, Casinos are doing a terrific job of marketing their
facilities to conventions which could come to Nebraska. As
a person who has worked many 4-to-midnight shifts, it would
be a good way to keep people in Nebraska. Many may want to
have a drink or even just a place to go after work to unwind
or to meet with friends. They either have to rush to get to
a bar in Nebraska and drink faster, or to go to Iowa which
has a later closing time and not to have to drink as
quickly. Many people also just want a chance to dance and
have a good time until later hours, not necessarily just to
drink. I would be happy to answer any questions.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Any questions? Seeing none, all right.
We'll take proponents first.

THOMAS WHITE: Good afternoon. I am Thomas M. White,
W-h-i-t-e. I am an attorney and my business is located in
downtown Omaha. My home is about ten minutes away from

downtown Omaha. I can fairly to say that I have gignificant
investments in the area of the state most 1likely to be
affected by this bill. 1 do not represent any bars. I do
not own any interest in any bars. I am suing a couple of
bars, but that 1s unrelated to the problems we have here.
{Laughter) I also find it pretty ironic that somebody who
has trouble staying awake for the ten o'clock news is
speaking on behalf of a 3 o'clock closing, but there you go.
I will tell you why I am for it. I was a partner in one of
the largest and oldest firms in the city until my father
retired off the bench and we started the firm we have now;
we have about ten employees. And I had to recruit. We had
partners from Harvard, Columbia, NYU, Stanford, all over the
country, and we would try to recruit the best talent
available to come to Omaha and live in the city when I was
doing that recruiting. And we had a very difficult time,
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and one of the reasons we had a difficult time is the
perception that there was no there there; that it was not a
city. It's funny because it's a song, but there is a
reality it conveys about young people, and that's the song
"New York, New York"; it's a city that never sleeps. And if
you want to recruit a certain level of professional who has
the talent to be sought after by other cities, one of the
things they really look for is a true urban experience. A
part of an urban experience is literally a city that doesn't
sleep. Now, that's not for everybody. It's certainly not
for me at my age. But for a lot of the people it is. And
whether they are coming in on a convention or whether they
are a computer expert who is looking for a job, and whether
or not he wants to go to ConAgra or FDR, it can matter. I
think this is one of the things that won't cost the state

anything. It can get out of the way of helping Omaha to
become a 24-hour city and that's why I support it. Thank
you.

SENATOR JANSSEN: Any questions of Tom? Seeing none, thank
you for being with us. Next proponent, please.

MIKE KELLEY: Chairman Janssen, members of the committee, my
name is Mike Kelley, K-e-l-l-e-y, representing Responsible
Beverage Operators of Nebraska. I've got another handout
for you. (Exhibit 5) And what this is, is an article from
The Arizona Republic that was, oh, it was about a year old.
And a year ago they were having this same debate, and it was
pointed out in the article that Phoenix, Tucson, and Mesa,
outside of Omaha, were the only...were the last remaining
cities of the top 50 that didn't have at least a 2 o'clock
close. And the bill says three. Cbviously we would be
delighted with two, but you dream high. It would be fun to
have an advantage over another state, for once, instead of
always being behind as a Nebraskan. But you are going to
hear...you probably will hear some arguments, oh, it
increases the increase of potential of damage of accidents

and so. That's not what this committee found. They
advanced this to the floor and it's now 2 o'clock in
Arizona. One of the things...and Tom White, I thought, hit
it pretty good...one of the things you have when you are
trying to... Years ago, I used to be on the...I was a
county commissioner, and we tried to recruit...I was part of

the convention bureau recruitment effort, and we would go
around the same thing. When you talk to people that are
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going to bring a convention, they kind of want to look, what
is your city like and what time do you roll up your
sidewalks, what time do your bars close. And if you say one
and Salt Lake City, Utah, is open till two, it hurts your
image. And it is something that, again, I think would be a
tourism tool and the amendment that Senator Cornett has
offered...and we thank her very much for bringing this bill
at our request...is that you would have a special license
created, and it would be an expensive license. It would
cost almost ten times what a normal licenses costs. A
normal licenses costs about $770; this would cost about
$7,500. Five thousand of that money would stay in the local
city; $2,500 would go to the state. The reason for that
would be, so that, number one, not everybody would take
advantage of this. You wouldn't have this really in every
bar across the state. You would probably have it in 20 to
30 places in Omaha, to be honest with you, if Omaha did it.
Oor you might have it in Sarpy County, some larger
communities right across the border. Now, I don't know each
community would do, but that's up to them. And if they pay
that much for it, they will pay attention to the type of
security they have to the way they operate. And, again,
this committee made up of older folks, and 1 am one of them,
and we...I'm like Tom, 10 o'clock I'm...if I make it through

Seinfeld, 1I'm delighted. So it's not for me; it's not for
you. But it is the younger people, they dance to a
different drummer and they have a different system. They
don't...they want to be out. You know, they

come. ..especially in the summertime, we have daylight
savings time; they don't come out to nightclubs and stuff
until 11 o'clock at night. So...and then they are...right
away, they are thinking about casinos; go across the river.
So we obviously have decided as a state not to expand
gambling. We could at least offer our entertainment venues
the opportunity to at least compete this way. And, again,
it's not something we're cramming down anybody's throat.
It's optional. If Omaha doesn't want to do it, they
wouldn't have to do it. Any other community in the state
could take advantage of it or not as their governing body
did. Again, the reason we put a high, expensive fee on it,
and maybe the committee doesn't want to do that, but we felt
that would control it automatically. Just the dollars alone
would contrel it, and that answers the biggest thing., This
bill has been around for several years in some form or
another. The biggest question always is law enforcement;
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what will it do to law enforcement? Well, this will pay for
the exp